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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

SOUTHERN DIVISION
Case No. _______-Civ

                                                                                                   
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )

)
PLAINTIFF, )

)
vs. ) 

)
PERFUMES UNLIMITED, INC., a Florida corporation, )

)
and )

)
IGNACIOUS GOLDENBERGER A/KA IGNACIO )

GOLDEMBERG A/K/A IGNACIO )
GOLDENBERG, individually and as an officer )
 of the corporation, )

)
DEFENDANTS. )

                                                                                                )

COMPLAINT FOR CIVIL PENALTIES, CONSUMER REDRESS,
PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Plaintiff, the United States of America, acting upon notification and authorization to the Attorney

General by the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “the Commission”), pursuant to Section 16(a)(1)

of the Federal Trade Commission Act (“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 56(a)(1), for its complaint alleges:

1. Plaintiff brings this action under Sections 5(a), 5(m)(1)(A), 13(b), 16(a) and 19 of the

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 45(m)(1)(A), 53(b), 56(a) and 57b, to secure civil penalties, consumer

redress, a permanent injunction and other equitable relief for defendants’ violations of the FTC’s Trade

Regulation Rule entitled “Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions Concerning Franchising and Business
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clear and conspicuous manner, that material which constitutes a reasonable basis

for the earnings claim is available to prospective franchisees, 16 C.F.R. §

436.1(b)(2) and (c)(2); 

(c) provide, as prescribed by the Rule, an earnings claim document containing

information that constitutes a reasonable basis for any earnings claim it makes, 16

C.F.R. § 436.1(b) and (c); and 

(d) clearly and conspicuously disclose, in immediate conjunction with any generally

disseminated earnings claim, additional information including the number and

percentage of prior purchasers known by the franchisor to have achieved the

same or better results, 16 C.F.R. § 436.1(e)(3)-(4).

16. Pursuant to Section 18(d)(3) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. 57a(d)(3), and 16 C.F.R. §

436.1, violations of the Franchise Rule constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting

commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

VIOLATIONS OF THE FRANCHISE RULE

COUNT I

Basic Disclosure Violations

17. Paragraphs 1 through 16 are incorporated herein by reference.

18. In connection with the offering of franchises, as “franchise” is defined in Section 436.2(a)

of the Franchise Rule, the defendants have violated Section 436.1(a) of the Rule and Section 5(a) of the

FTC Act by failing to provide prospective franchisees with accurate and complete basic disclosure

documents as prescribed by the Rule.
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COUNT II

Earnings Disclosure Violations

19. Paragraphs 1 through 16 are incorporated herein by reference.

20. In connection with the offering of franchises, as “franchise” is defined in Section 436.2(a)

of the Franchise Rule, the defendants have violated Sections 436.1(b)-(c) of the Rule and Section 5(a) of

the FTC Act by making earnings claims to prospective franchisees while, inter alia,: (1) lacking a

reasonable basis for each claim at the times it is made; (2) failing to disclose, in immediate conjunction

with each earnings claim, and in a clear and conspicuous manner, that material which ccuo	6tuts i
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CONSUMER INJURY

23. Consumers in the United States have suffered and will suffer substantial monetary loss as

a result of defendants’ violations of the Franchise Rule and the FTC Act.  Absent injunctive relief by this

Court, defendants are likely to continue to injure consumers and harm the public interest.  

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, plaintiff requests that this Court, as authorized by Sections 5(a), 5(m)(1)(A),
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DATED:                              

OF COUNSEL: FOR THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

EILEEN HARRINGTON ROBERT D. MCCALLUM, JR.
Associate Director for Assistant Attorney General
Marketing Practices Civil Division
Federal Trade Commission U.S. Department of Justice
Washington, D.C. 20580

COLLEEN ROBBINS GUY A. LEWIS
Attorney United States Attorney
Federal Trade Commission
Washington, D.C. 20580
PHONE:  (202) 326-2548
FAX:  (202) 326-3395 ___________________________

Assistant United States Attorney
United States Attorney's Office for
  the Southern District of Florida
99 NE 4th Street
Miami, Florida 33132
PHONE:
FAX:

EUGENE M. THIROLF
Director
Office of Consumer Litigation

                                                      
RICHARD N. GOLDBERG
Trial Attorney
Office of Consumer Litigation
U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 386
Washington, D.C. 20044
PHONE: 202-307-2532
FAX: 202-514-8742
richard.goldberg@usdoj.gov


